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P R O C E E D I N G S  

* * * * *  

CHAIRMAN CARTER: We are back on the record. Staff, 

you're recognized. 

MR. BREMAN: Thank you. Chairman, Commissioners, I'm 

Jim Breman with your staff. Item 10 addresses whether FPL 

should be responsible for the additional fuel costs that 

occurred in the spring of 2006 when Turkey Point Unit 3 was not 
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available due to a hole being drilled in the pressurized 

piping. The resolution of the issue was deferred while 

investigations were active and FPI; was allowed to recover the 

additional fuel costs subject to refund with interest. 

The investigative efforts were concluded earlier this 

year and the matter was included in this year's fuel docket 

Prehearing Order as Issue 13C. Testimony was sponsored by FPL 

and OPC. The intervenors requested opportunity to file 

posthearing briefs on Issue 13C. FPL, OPC, the Attorney 

General and AARP filed posthearing briefs. Based on a review 

of the relcord and the posthearing briefs, staff recommends the 

Commission find that FPL did not carry its burden of proof and 

that FPL should be responsible for the additional fuel costs. 

Staff also recommends FPL implement the refund plus 

interest in the form of a one-time credit beginning in the 

first billing cycle 30 days after the final order is issued. 

In Issue 2 staff recommends to keep the ongoing docket open. 
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Staff is ready to answer any questions you may have at this 

time . 
CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Edgar, you're 

recognized. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have 

just a couple of very brief questions. And the first -- and 

I'm looking at Page 19 of the recommendation, and about halfway 

down the top partial paragraph there is a sentence that reads, 

"The staff recommendation would be that the refund should be 

applied as a cents per kilowatt hour credit to customer bills 

in the month the refund is made." And I would ask you to 

elaborate or specify as to what that amount would, would be 

Jvithin whatever ranges, what the customers would actually see 

in a dollar or cent amount, recognizing that on the previous 

page it says that if it were to be spread across 12 months, it 

dould be approximately six cents a month, and I'm just trying 

to compare amounts. 

MS. DRAPER: Elisabeth Draper with the Commission 

staff. FPL provided information in the fuel hearing that if it 

is spread over 12 months, in 2009 it would be six cents on a 

1,000 kilowatt hour residential bill. If it's a one-time 

refund, six times 1 2  would be 72 cents. Since the average 

residential customer uses more than 1,000 kilowatt hours, 

2pproximately a dollar on the bill- for a residential customer. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Okay. Thank you. So with that, 
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that further explanation, my second question is can you please 

discuss what would be the comparative advantage of the one-time 

credit versus the other option of incorporating it into the 

fuel hearing process? 

M S .  DRAPER: The advantage -- 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: A refund, incorporating the 

refund amount into the fuel hearing process. 

M S .  DRAPER: The advantage to the customers would be 

:hat the one-time refund would be more timely. The customers 

lave already paid for those costs. S o  if the Commission 

lecides to go with the refund, staff believes it should be done 

sooner rather than later. 

And the second reason for staff's thinking was that 

;ince the amount is rather small if it's spread over nine, over 

12 months, a one-time credit would provide a slightly larger 

imount to the customers. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you. And I guess, 

fr. Chairman, I would just make a very, very brief comment that 

In this narrow point as to how to apply the potential refund, 

:'m still weighing, and I welcome comments, of course, as to 

lrhat would be the most advantageous to the customer and the 

xocess: A one-time refund, recogmizing that it's a very small 

imount and would have, of course, processing charges, et 

:etera, that may be the way to go, or realizing that what we 

ire looking at are costs for additional fuel that was required 
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because of an outage, the symmetry or, of including that in the 

same true-up process that we go through every year. And I" 

still weighing on that, that more narrow point. Thank you, Mr. 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioner McMurrian. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you. And actually my 

questions are on that same wavelength and so I appreciate you 

bringing that up. The -- I guess I'll ask a few questions, but 

I've got some concerns about it too. 

First let me just ask, how are refunds resulting from 

an overrecovery normally handled through the fuel clause? 

MS. BENNETT: The last one we did in 2006 was handled 

on a monthly basis through the fuel clause. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: And so it was included in 

sort of the amount that set, that we used to set the factor 

which is applied to customer bills, so it's included in that, 

the fuel charge on the bill, it's factored into that factor in 

this instance. 

MS. BENNETT: Correct. Correct. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Okay. And I think you've 

2lready explained, I guess, why you chose this option as 

Dpposed tlo that normal way that we recover it from Commissioner 

Edgar's question. But let me also ask about the cost of the 

Dptions a:nd you've got the three llisted there. 
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And I guess the first one is to me more consistent 

with how we normally refund money through the fuel clause. And 

I guess really the difference in one and three is number one 

would refund it over the 12-month period in '09, number three 

would refund it over the 12-month period in 2010. I 

personally, just to share my thouyhts, I personally don't like 

waiting until 2010 because I think we recovered those costs a 

while back and I think we need to try to refund them more 

quickly than waiting all the way to 2 0 1 0 ' s  recovery period. 

But with respect to the second option of the one-time 

credit, and I heard what you said was the reason why you did, 

why you recommended that here, wouldn't that be more, a more 

costly way of refunding those dol:tars? Because I know when 

ue've, anid just to editorialize a little bit, I know when we've 

had other issues, and I know we didn't talk about this in the 

hearing SIO I know we're, we don't have a lot of information 

here, but I know when we've had other issues that have come up 

before us about line items on bills generally we get a lot of 

response from companies about how costly it is to put in a 

me-time line item on a bill. A n d  especially in this case it 

Mould be put on one time and then it would be taken off the 

Jery next month. So could you speak to that? I have some 

Joncerns. 

MR. BREMAN: Yes, ma'am, Commissioner, 1'11 start and 

:hen I'll hand it over to legal staff because we've been 
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pursuing that topical area. 

Our recommendation makes a note that we didn't 

investigate this matter thorough1:y at hearing, and intuitively 

there will be costs and it will be additional. And there has 

been dialogue and effort to try to address how much, if that 

particular number exists. 

Is this where I hand it over? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Cooke, you're recognized. 

MR. COOKE: It presents a procedural question because 

we have a hearing record that is closed. But we did anticipate 

that this question may come up and we were able to obtain 

information from the company what the estimate is. 

In order for you to hear that from us, we would 

need -- to protect the integrity of  the hearing process it 

dould be proper to reopen the record for the very limited 

purpose of hearing this number. We reached out to all of the 

parties and in effect have a stipulation where nobody objects 

to us reading this number in the fiorm of two sentences into the 

record and then having the record immediately closed. The 

wmber is just a number that's reported to us from the company. 

rhat's all it is. And if we do this, you would use it for what 

it I s  worth. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Well, Mr. Chairman, just to 

Zlarify, :I wasn't necessarily asking for the number. So if 

:hat -- I mean it really doesn't matter to me if we reopen it 
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and get t.he number. And, of course, we would need to compare 

the options. I don't know if just one number about one option 

would be it anyway. But I'm not necessarily asking that. It's 

fine if the Commission wants to glo there. I guess I'm trying 

to get an idea of the cost comparison between are we still on 

shaky ground there as far as not lhaving record evidence? 

Because it seems to me that it would be more costly to do the 

second option as opposed to the first, but I really don't know 

that. 

MS. BENNETT: Staff can -- 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner -- hang on a second. 

3old on everybody. Just hold your places, boys and girls. Out 

if an abundance of caution, Commissioners, because this issue 

ias come up, just for the limited purpose of just getting the 

iumber, because I would hate for us to talk around it and not 

zalk about it when we -- just, just for the limited purpose of 

jetting the number, if you need that number -- because if 

rou're going to talk about quantifying the costs and things of 

;hat nature as it applies to that, I think we'll have to have 

:he number on the record. I just -- I'm -- Commissioner Edgar. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Mr. Chairman, I do have one 

vestion on the same line but that: I don't think requires that 

Je go in that direction. And so if I could maybe get that out 

if the way and then see where, where we are. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Cooke, how far can we go up -- 
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I mean, I'm all in favor of putting my nose on the line without 

crossing it, but how far can we go without -- I mean, obviously 

people's due process rights and considerations of the parties 

are at risk here and we don't really want to go beyond that. 

And we don't want, we don't want to have a distinction without 

3 difference either. We don't wa:nt to try to go about it 

dithout actually doing it the proper way. 

MR. COOKE: Mr. Chairman, we're safe so far. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: So far? 

MR. COOKE: I think that, I think that the -- 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: If we get crazy now, you'll raise 

jour hand. 

MR. COOKE: I will. And I think staff, staff can 

;peak to its understanding of relative amounts based on what it 

mows. It's only if we try to introduce a number that, a 

?actual number that's not in the record that, you know, we 

vould want to probably take this safeguard. But for staff to 

;ay thing,s like relatively speaking it would be more expensive 

:o do the one-time versus the l2-month, that's the sort of 

:hing that's perfectly fine for staff to address. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Commissioners, without being 

rude is that I told Mr. Cooke if we get kind of far afield, 

le's going to raise his hand and jiust get our attention so we 

ion ' t go down that road. 

Commissioner McMurrian, you had the floor. 
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COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: I think what I was trying to 

get at wais the relative -- relatively speaking out of those 

three options which ones are more costly, ranking them in some 

way I guess, I suppose. That's what I was getting at. I 

wasn't really asking for the number. If the other 

Commissioners feel like they need that -- and I know 

Commissioner Edgar had a related question too and perhaps that 

will help us, so. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Actually I think my question was 

along the same line, but if I cou:ld maybe throw it out there so 

they can answer both, I think that might be helpful. And it is 

the comparative that I was trying to get to with no specific 

numbers. But I'm -- intuitively :I: am not understanding why the 

one-time :might be more expensive than spreading over 12 

separate times. And so the way I would pose the question to 

our staff is realizing that in the past on other issues 

probably with this company and other companies we have had some 

one-time refund charges and we also, I know, have had some 

refunds that we have spread, directed be spread over 12 months, 

and so looking back at those past experiences, what I was going 

to ask, M:r .  Chairman, is if the staff could give us a feel for 

in the past administratively if there was a comparison between 

the costs associated with a one-ti.me versus a 12-month period? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Staff, you're recognized. And 

also, Commissioners, on this line of questioning, I think 
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Commissioner McMurrian had completed her question. But if 

there are additional questions on this line of questioning, 

we'll recognize you. Staff, you're recognized, and then we'll 

go to Commissioner -- Commissioner Edgar, had you -- 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: I finished. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Then we'll go to Commissioner Skop. 

Staff, you're recognized. 

M S .  DRAPER: Just to rank them, it's based on staff's 

understanding, based on discussioiis with companies in the past 

that a one-time credit would be more costly to the company. 

Revising the fuel factors for 2009 would be the lesser cost 

option for the company. 

MR. HINTON: And that's,, that's the 12 months, 

spacing it out over 12 months. Basically that would just be 

revising the fuel factor that's already in place for the next 

12 months, making one revision -- 

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: I'm sorry. I didn't understand 

that. I apologize. Could we just; hear it one more time on the 

exact same point? 

MS. DRAPER: I'm sorry if I wasn't clear. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: That's all right. It's probably 

me. And .I hope, Commissioner McMurrian, that this is kind of 

along the same line that you, that you were headed. 

Okay. So, so my question was the one-time versus 

over 12 months, 12-time assessment. of refund. 
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M S .  DRAPER: One-time would be more costly to the 

Zompany to implement and administer. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Than 12 months. 

M S .  DRAPER: Than 12 months. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Wh:y? 

MS. DRAPER: I believe that the one-time refund would 

require FPL to revise its billing system, to do some 

?rogramming to calculate the refund and put a line item on the 

2ill that showed a refund. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: But, wouldn't that need to be 

lone for 12 months? 

M S .  DRAPER: For 12 months FPL would revise the fuel 

factor. The fuel factor would be lowered and then customers 

sould be billed the fuel factors like they always are. 

MR. BREMAN: In other words, you wouldn't see it on 

:he bill. 

MR. HINTON: Commissioner, it does seem 

Zounterintuitive that if it's something that's going to be done 

for the entire year would seem to be more costly than something 

lone just once. But that one-time event requires more billing 

:hanges and modifications than just being able to adjust the 

factor that's already in place for the next 12 months. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Okay. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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Just on that discussion, again, I think that, you 

know, I can understand that. But I'm generally in support of 

staff's primary recommendation, the one-time refund, and I'll 

Tet into some rationale for that. 

But just to our General Counsel, Mr. Cooke, certainly 

order a refund; is that the Commission has the discretion to 

Zorrect? 

MR. COOKE: That's correct 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. And certainly it was 

reasonably foreseeable for the utility to know that they may 

lave to refund the money should the Commission determine that 

:hey were, that a refund was warranted; is that correct? 

MR. COOKE: I agree with that. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay. So in terms of what, how 

;he refund is, is implemented, is cost really a relevant 

ionsideration that this Commission should consider in light of 

:he fact that consumers have already paid for this money and 

TL's been holding it should we choose to hold FPL accountable? 

MR. COOKE: That's really a policy decision for you 

311 as to who, who might bear that cost, et cetera. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. And I think Commissioner 

Zrgenziano wants to jump in here, but I have two additional 

pestions . And -- 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Along the same line? 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: No. I think, I think -- well, 
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they're all in the same line. But I think Commissioner 

Argenziano is chomping at the bit, so -- 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: No. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Just I guess to me with 

respect to the one-time refund, again, I'm not persuaded by the 

Zost or the level of effort that would need to go into that. 

Chat I'm looking at is although the one-time refund would not 

3e a lot of money per customer, I guess it would be 76 cents, 

:o me the money has been held, it"s accrued interest. And if 

:he Commission moves forward with withholding (phonetic) 

iccountability in this issue, that the refund, a one-time 

refund would be warranted. And the staff has noted it would be 

-ssued 30 days after the final order from the first billing 

:ycle, so that would provide some near-term economic relief in 

:he new year right after the holiday. So I guess I would kind 

If view it as a, as a holiday present, should we go that 

lirection. But in lieu of staggering it six cents per month 

wer 12 months, I think that we just need to, if the Commission 

:hooses to go in that direction, we just need to hold, I mean, 

:o give the money back to the consumers. And I think that 

liven the economic times it's not much, but, again, it would be 

iomething. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. I agree. Since 
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the company in my opinion failed to carry the burden for the, 

that it used prudency in the management of this temporary 

employee, why would you have the consumers wait for their 

money? And not even knowing how much cost, which I have a hard 

time understanding that, I think that, I really do. And I 

understanld that maybe they have do this, but that's what 

happens when you make a mistake or you're not prudent in what 

you do. S o  I say that they should get their money back 

immediately and quickly and without regard to how much it costs 

the compa:ny at this point. The consumer is due back their 

noney, and my, my desire would be to give it back all at once 

2nd right now. I mean, as soon as possible. Right now. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: I understood that. 

Commissioner Skop, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you. 

Just two quick follow-up questions somewhat along the 

same line but somewhat different. On Page 4 I'm concerned that 

there may be a typographical error in terms of the position of 

the parties for FIPUG and AARP. It says, ''FPL." Is that a 

typo and would, in fact should that be FRF? Because I can't 

see Mr. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Where are you? 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Page 4. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Where? 

COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Of the -- yeah. Page 4 on the 
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position, position of the parties for FIPUG it says it adopts 

FPL's position and AARP adopted FPL's position. And I just 

can't see Mr. Twomey doing that on this issue. 

(Laughter. ) 

MS. BENNETT: Mr. -- 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: I think you've got a different 

version. Staff? 

MS. BENNETT: The, the issue says, "Should customers 

or FPL be responsible?" AARP says FPL, FIPUG says FPL. That's 

their position, FPL should be responsible. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Oh, "should." Okay. Maybe I 

misread it. Okay. My bad. I'm getting old. I had one of 

those over 40 moments. 

(Laughter.) 

And then I thought that Commissioner Edgar was going 

to mentio:n it, she's on the, on the page and I thought she was 

going to do it, but she, actually the sentence right under it, 

but I had a similar concern that she shared. Where it says on 

Page 19 t:hat only retail customers or records should receive a 

refund, t:hat really wasn't elaborated on and I was just 

ivondering why only retail customers as opposed to commercial 

x s  tomers? 

MS. DRAPER: No. I'm differentiating between retail 

m d  wholesale. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. All right. Semantics. 
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MS. DRAPER: S o  it's a111 residential, commercial, 

industrial, retail customers. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Fair enough then. And, like I 

say, with that, Mr. Chairman, I would support again moving 

forward with staff's primary recommendation at the appropriate 

time . 
CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. And Commissioner 

McMurrian. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you. I just wanted to 

go back to what we were talking about. I just wanted to say if 

the Commission, you know, feels like it's important to do the 

one-time, it's not like I'm adamantly opposed to that. 

I guess when I read it and given the things that have 

come up over the years about the one-time charge -- let me try 

this too. I think, I think some of the reason why the one-time 

zharge, w:hy I believe it probably is more expensive is that the 

me-time, one-time refund, not charge, the one-time refund 

Mould, would call for an additional line item being added to 

the bill for that 72 cents or up to a dollar; whereas, the fuel 

factor is already a line item on the bill. There wouldn't be, 

there wouldn't be an additional line item for the 12-month, the 

six cents over 12 months. It would already be included in that 

Euel item. Ms. Kummer, am I misspeaking or something? 

MS. KUMMER: They would not necessarily have to do a 

separate .line item on the bill. I believe most of the IOUs' 
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bills have a message block already on their bill and they could 

put a message in the message block rather than doing a line 

item. A line item on a bill is a very expensive proposition. 

I don't think that staff really contemplated a separate line 

item as much as a notation on the bill somewhere that there was 

a refund associated with this. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Okay. I appreciate that. 

Because I read it to mean, especially with the explanation of 

the docket number and all of that that's listed there under 

that item, I took it to mean that it would be a separate line 

item there. So anyway -- but my point was if, if the 

Commission wants to do that, I'm not opposed to it. I do -- 

it's a point well-taken that the customers would get their 

money back faster that way. And I have that same concern with 

that third option which wouldn't even put it in place until 

2010,  and I agree that we need to try to get the refund back to 

them sooner. And, Mr. Chairman, at the appropriate time I have 

some comments about sort of the overall case too, if -- 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. I'll come back to you for 

that. We're just in our questions now, but I'll come back to 

you for comments. 

Commissioners, any further questions? Commissioner 

Skop, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just 

forgot to mention before, I'd like to commend staff for their 
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dork on this. We spent a significant amount of time at the 

hearing and staff's recommendation incorporated the 

recommendation as well as the positions of the parties, and I 

appreciate all of staff's work on this issue. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. Commissioners? 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Well done. Well done. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Commissioner McMurrian for 

comments. We're in comments. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you, Chairman. And I 

guess I just wanted to share some of, some of my reaction on 

this issue. And my initial reaction to 13C was, you know, as 

the issue was framed it was "Should customers or FPL be 

responsible?" And I guess my initial reaction was that the 

person that drilled the hole should be responsible and I highly 

doubt that anybody disagrees with that. But despite that 

responsibility itls next to impossible, of course, to, to 

expect that anything close to $6.2 million could be recovered 

from that person. So,  of course, we went, we gathered evidence 

about whether FPL's actions and those related expenditures were 

prudent, and I agree with staff that FPL did not meet that 

burden of proof and that the replacement fuel costs should be 

refunded, as we've been talking about. 

But I had a few other thoughts that I wanted to get 

out while we were talking about this and say, first off, that I 

have no reason not to believe Witness Jones when he suggested 
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that the FPL screening procedures were considered an industry 

model. I also don't doubt that the NRC guidelines and FPL's 

own procedures have worked well for years to safely guard those 

plants. And it also appears that the company handled the 

situation well once the problem was discovered. I believe that 

that's all true based on the evidence we heard. Still the fact 

remains that this person made it through the screening no 

matter how rigorous. They were granted an unescorted access 

and they committed an act of vandalism that was very costly and 

could have degraded the safety of the plant despite all the 

other people that work every day to make sure that that plant 

operates safely. 

I would ask FPL to seriously reexamine its guidelines 

and procedures to see if there are improvements that could be 

made to do everything within reason to prevent granting the 

wrong person unescorted access in the future. Given the nature 

of the operations at these plants and the importance of 

providing the public with the utmost confidence in your 

management of these units, I think such reexamination is 

warranted. And I further encourage you to share those benefits 

of your experience with this case and any changes in procedures 

that might come from it with others in the industry as well as 

the NRC. And I appreciate you letting me say that, Chairman. 

It's just something I've been thinking about throughout the 

case that I was concerned about their need to look at this a 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

11 

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

15  

1 6  

1 7  

18 

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

22  

23  

2 4  

2 5  

22  

Little bit closer. And I'm not saying that they need to change 

mything, but it would appear that they need to at least take a 

:loser look. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: And to that point, and 

sxcuse me because it's off the cuff, but it's what I thought of 

211 along also. You know, you cannot, you cannot sometimes 

?redict the actions of an individual. It's very, very 

3ifficult to do that or to, you know, to look at it and say out 

3f which employee do I have here -- you know, it's very hard 

€or a company to do that. 

ue're talking about building more nuclear power plants where 

you want the consumers and the citizens not only in the State 

2f Florida but throughout the United States to have confidence. 

4nd I think that it is the company's responsibility to help 

provide the utmost confidence to the consumers when we're 

talking about nuclear power plants or energy plants that are so 

crucial to everyday life and our economy and so on and so on. 

But sayinlg that, understanding that the company cannot always 

predict, but at the same time when you have a background that 

is somewhat questionable, that even though, and you heard me 

throughout the proceedings basically saying, you know, a lot of 

those things were thrown out, it makes it very difficult, even 

due process for an individual. 

But we're talking about a plant and 
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But I'm, I'm with Commissioner McMurrian on the fact 

that the company really needs to take a second look and a much 

more diligent, serious look at who they allow to be unescorted 

in certain areas. And I think they will after this. I think 

they have to. 

S o  in saying that, understanding that you can't 

always predict and it makes it very difficult for a company to 

say, you know, which one, but look at a little closer. And 

even though due process is sometimes at stake, and it was for 

me going back and forth with this, there are indicators that 

may say, you know, we just better be careful because the 

greater -- I guess the greater thing that you get out of this 

is making sure that the people are confident that our plants 

are safe and that we don't put people in places that could do 

harm as this, as this happened. So with that, I, I appreciate 

staff's efforts on this case too. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioner Skop for comments. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

And, again, I concur with Commissioner McMurrian and 

Commissioner Argenziano's comments. There's always room for 

improvement. You know, had FPL come in and expressed some 

responsibility in terms of things that they could have done 

better, I might have felt differently about this case. But, 

again, the, the failure to carry the burden combined with the, 
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you know, having control of who comes into your plant and is 

allowed access to restricted areas -- again, not to rehash what 

Commissioner McMurrian and Commissioner Argenziano mentioned 

about the person of interest, but to me an additional concern, 

and I think it was properly raised, was that the second 

co-worker, if he had reported what the person of interest had 

told him immediately, as he was trained to do by FPL, the 

drilled hole could have been discovered and repaired during the 

planned outage, which would have prevented the need to purchase 

the purchased power altogether. So to me this was somewhat 

avoidable. There seemed to be, you know, the bad actor, but 

also too other employees that could have mitigated the damage. 

And, you know, it's very easy to come before the Commission and 

just merely try and seek recovery and shed risk to the 

ratepayers. But in this instance I feel that having a direct 

hand by FPL in the training and the discretion to grant or deny 

access, FPL was significantly or had some responsibility for 

what happened here. So, again, there's always room for 

improvement, and I would ask FPL to take a critical look at 

lessons learned and what might be able to prevent any 

reoccurrence of this nature on a forward-going basis. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioner Edgar. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Very briefly, you know, we spent a lot of time on 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

25 

this issue at hearing and partly because it did raise so many 

related, maybe not directly related, on point to the hearing, 

but yet many related issues. And I know I for one learned a 

lot about, more about some of the processes that are in place 

by both the utility and the NRC, so that was helpful. It's a 

little staggering, of course, when you think about how much 

time we spent on this issue in comparison to the overall 

amounts that were in discussion for the hearing. 

However, I would like to make the comment that when 

I -- you know, our mission, of course, as an agency is safety, 

reliability and affordability, and I do believe that the safety 

of the customers and the workers and the area is the first 

priority for the utilities in this state and I just would like 

to recognize that fact. However, I also believe that with the 

very unique facts of this situation as presented to us at 

hearing, that to refund this specific amount to the customers 

is the most appropriate decision for us to make and that's my 

thinking. And so, Mr. Chairman, I can offer a motion whenever 

you deem the appropriate time. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. And, Commissioners, 

when we went down this road, I think all five of us recognized 

the significance of this issue. That's why we did the 

carve-out of Issue 13C. I was seeing Issue 13C in my sleep. 

And as Co~mmissioner Argenziano said, there were some due 

process issues there in terms of, you know, how many times do 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

11 

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

2 2  

2 3  

2 4  

25  

2 6  

you punish a person for one offense, particularly when the 

disposition of that offense resulted in no criminal actions or 

charges in that? I see my colleague Commissioner McMurrian in 

terms of how she agonized over laying it out because there are 

some critical issues in terms of the company had the, they had 

the policies and procedures in place, they had the training in 

place, th.ey had the manuals in place, they had the persons 

responsiblle in place. Maybe the NRC does need to look at this 

from a standpoint to where, let's take it to another level to 

uhere we go above and beyond the call of duty. I do -- and I 

echo the comments of the four of you because we set this issue 

out because it was important, it was significant. And as 

Zommissioner Argenziano always says, I'm quoting you now, she 

says, "I want to be fair to the consumers, but I want to be 

fair to the companies too." And that's our charge is the 

balancing act. 

And I think in this case here we did the right thing 

in terms of carving this out. And you're right, Commissioner 

Edgar, we did spend a lot more time on this issue than we did 

the overall, but it was an important enough issue. If we're 

going to build nuclear power plants in Florida, and we are, and 

2s we proceed further, we by our actions here today would show 

the entire country that we've gone a step above. 

In addition to having extraordinary protections for 

safety and all, make recommendations to the NRC in terms of how 
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to do that. And a lot of states are looking to Florida, and I 

think that this shows this. And in a minute, Commissioner 

Edgar, I'll recognize you for a motion. As we do this, I think 

that based upon the facts presented to us in this case staff is 

correct that the burden of proof was not met. And as such, as 

I said, we did agonize a lot over this case. We did give 

everyone a proper opportunity, the Intervenors, the company, we 

listened to the witnesses, we looked at the manuals, we looked 

at the, some redacted information from the FBI and all like 

that. And I think that this is -- the staff has done a great 

job in codifying the issues that we identified and the concerns 

that we have. And with that, Commissioner Edgar, you're 

recognized for a motion. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

In recognition of the record in this case and the 

discussion that we have had here at the bench today, I would 

make a motion in favor of the staff recommendation on all 

issues for Item 10. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Second. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Before going further, on the 

payment schedule -- 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Which, which would include the 

one-time payment schedule as we have discussed, one, 'excuse me, 

one-time refund of the full amount to customers. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Second. 
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Commissioners, any questions 

3r concerns? Any further debate? Hearing none, all those in 

favor, let it be known by the sign of aye. 

(Unanimous affirmative vote.) 

All those opposed, like sign. Show it done. Thank 

you. Thank you, staff. Outstanding. 

(Agenda Item 10 concluded.) 

* * * * *  
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